
 
 

Agenda - 
10.16.2023 - Page 1 

 

 
Watch Live via YouTube at:  
https://www.youtube.com/@jcmedia3657 

  

Pursuant to Ordinance #08-17, Any citizen of the County 
may sign to speak in person at the Council Meeting 
(before the Council Meeting’s Regular Meeting start 

time) on the Public Comments Sign in Sheet on the Podium to address 
Council on matters pertaining to County Services and Operations. 
Presentations will be limited to three (3) minutes per person and total 
public input will be limited to 30 minutes.  Written Public Comments 
may also be submitted by 1PM on the date of the Council Meeting by 
emailing your comment to: comments@jaspercountysc.gov.  
 
To participate in a Public Hearing for a specific agenda item, you may 
either email written public comments to 
comments@jaspercountysc.gov by 1:00PM on Monday, October 16 
2023; or you can speak in person at the Council Meeting by signing in 
on the Public Hearing Sign In Sheet located outside the Council 
Chambers Doors prior to the start of the meeting. Public Hearing 
Comments shall be limited to 3 minutes per person. 
 

Instructions may also be found at the Jasper County website 
www.jaspercountysc.gov  
        FOR MORE INFORMATION, PLEASE CALL (843) 717-3696  

https://www.youtube.com/@jcmedia3657
mailto:comments@jaspercountysc.gov
http://www.jaspercountysc.gov/


 
 

Agenda - 
10.16.2023 - Page 2 

 

JASPER COUNTY COUNCIL 

Jasper County Clementa C. Pinckney Government Bldg.  
     358 3rd Avenue, Ridgeland, SC 29936                                                                                                                                     

     Monday, October 16, 2023 

5:00PM 
 
1.     Call to Order by Chairman Sauls 
 

Clerk’s Report of Compliance with the Freedom of Information Act.  
*In compliance with the Freedom of Information Act, notice of meetings and agendas were posted      
and furnished to all news media and persons requesting notification* 

 
2.         Executive Session SECTION 30-4-70.   

(a) A public body may hold a meeting closed to the public for one or more of the following reasons: 
 
(1) Discussion of employment, appointment, compensation, promotion, demotion,  

       discipline, or release of an employee, a student, or a person regulated by a public body or    
the appointment of a person to a public body – Levy Fire Protection District Board  

 
(2)  Discussion of negotiations incident to proposed contract arrangements and 
proposed purchase or sale of property, the receipt of legal advice where the legal 
advice related to pending, threatened, or potential claim or other matters covered 
by the attorney-client privilege, settlement of legal claims, or the position of the 
public agency in other adversary situations involving the assertion against the 
agency of a claim – Davis v. Jasper County; Cameron Heddings v Jasper County;  
Horowitz / McDowell v Jasper County; Airport Matters - Removal of Fuel Tank,  
Professional Services Contract with Holt Consulting Company LLC; Ridgeland Fire 
Contract; Lobbying Services Contract; Exit 3; Tax Map #’s 063-26-14-001 and  
063-26-14-002; Tax Map # 067-00-01-010; Coroner’s Contracts for Transport; 
Discussion of IGA – Ambulance Service pursuant to § 6-1-190; Discussion of IGA – 
Fire Protection and Emergency Services with the Town of Ridgeland; Project 
Showcase Legal Representation 
 

       (5)  Discussion of matters relating to the proposed location, expansion, or the provision  
     of services encouraging location or expansion of industries or other businesses in 
     the area served by a public body – Prospect Update  
 

ANY EXECUTIVE SESSION MATTER ON WHICH DISCUSSION HAS NOT BEEN COMPLETED MAY HAVE 
DISCUSSION SUSPENDED FOR PURPOSES OF BEGINNING THE OPEN SESSION AT ITS SCHEDULED TIME, AND 



 
 

Agenda - 
10.16.2023 - Page 3 

 

COUNCIL MAY RETURN TO EXECUTIVE SESSION DISCUSSION AFTER THE CONCLUSION OF THE OPEN SESSION 
AGENDA ITEMS. PLEASE BE ADVISED THERE MAY BE VOTES BASED ON ITEMS FROM THE EXECUTIVE SESSION. 
   
3:  Return to Open Session at 6:30PM 

o 3.1 Action coming out of Executive Session 
 
4.  Pledge of Allegiance and Invocation:  
 
5.  Discussion of Consent Agenda and Agenda Items: 
 
6.  Approval of Agenda:  
_______________________________________________________________________________________  

PRESENTATIONS AND PROCLAMATIONS 
_______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
7. Chairman Sauls –  Proclamation: A proclamation to Ms. Beatrice Graham from the Jasper County 
Council in Recognition of her 105th Birthday and her accomplishments. 
 
8. Chris Hance and Bill Ramsey of M.B. Kahn – M.B. Kahn Update  
 ______________________________________________________________________________________  

PUBLIC HEARINGS, ORDINANCES AND ACTION ITEMS 
 

 
9. David Tedder – Public Hearing and Consideration of the 3rd reading of Ordinance  
#O-2023-18 clarifying that the provisions of Ordinance O-2023-06, providing that certain 
property subject to the Development Agreement entered into by the County and Conduit 
Street Partners, LLC (CSP) must be conveyed by the property’s current owner to the developer 
thereof, includes the developer’s successors and assigns by recognizing  and acknowledging 
the acquisition may be by an affiliate of CSP, to provide for the approval of an Exhibit 
inadvertently omitted, and matters related thereto (1streading 09.18.2023; Public Hearing and 
2nd reading 10.02.2023). 
 
10.  Mike Skinner – Consideration of approval of Addendum #2 Scope and Fee Addition to 
March 30, 2023 Engagement Letter with Mauldin and Jenkins.  
 
11. Wanda Simmons – Consideration of Planning Commission Appointments. 
_______________________________________________________________________________________  

CITIZEN COMMENTS 
_______________________________________________________________________________________ 
12. Open Floor to the Public per Ordinance 08-17 Any citizen of the County may sign to speak in person at 
the Council Meeting (before the Council Meeting’s 6:30PM start time on the Sign-In Sheet on the 
Podium), to address Council on matters pertaining to County Services and Operations. Presentations will 
be limited to three (3) minutes per person and total public input will be limited to 30 minutes. 



 
 

Agenda - 
10.16.2023 - Page 4 

 

_______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
13.  Administrator’s Report    
_______________________________________________________________________________________  

 
CONSENT AGENDA 

_______________________________________________________________________________________  
 

14. Russell Wells – Consideration of Council Approval of Resolution #R-2023-19 declaring 
certain property to be surplus and authorizing its sale or disposition – Emergency Services 
Division – Self Contained Breathing Apparatus and Cylinders.  
 
15. Danny Lucas – Consideration of Council Approval of Resolution #R-2023-20 approving the Sole Source 
Procurement of a Lektro Aircraft Tow Vehicle, With Specified Optional Accessories, for Skyblue Aviation 
FBO, Ridgeland -Claude Dean Airport. 
 
16. Kim Burgess – Consideration of Council Approval of the MB Kahn Work authorization 
for the Coosawhatchie Fire Station. 
 
17.  Kim Burgess – Consideration of Council Approval for the award of the Robertville 
HVAC bid for repairs and a request to authorize the County Administrator to execute all 
documents related thereto. 
 
18.  Russell Wells- Consideration of Council Approval of Resolution #R-2023-21 approving 
an Intergovernmental Agreement Regarding Fire Protection and Emergency Services 
between Jasper County, South Carolina and the Town of Ridgeland, and matters related 
thereto. 
 
19.  Approval of the Minutes:  
_______________________________________________________________________________________  

END OF CONSENT AGENDA 
_______________________________________________________________________________________ 
20.   Council Members Comments 

 
21.  Possible Return to Executive Session to Continue Discussion on Matters Regarding Agenda  
Item II. 
*Council may act on any item appearing on the agenda including items discussed in executive session. 
22.  Adjournment: 
In accordance with South Carolina Code of Laws, 1976, Section 30-4-80(d), as amended, notification of the 
meeting was posted on the County Council Building at a publicly accessible place and on the county website 
at least 24 hours prior to the meeting.  A copy of the agenda was given to the local news media and posted 
at the meeting location twenty-four hours prior to the meeting.  

Special Accommodations Available Upon Request to Individuals with Disabilities 
(843) 717-3696 





 

 PROCLAMATION 

 

Whereas, the Jasper County Council would like to recognize the accomplishments,  

contributions and 105th Birthday of Ms. Beatrice Graham; and  

Whereas, Ms. Beatrice Graham was born in Jasper County on August 29, 1918, and is a 

native of South Carolina; and   

Whereas, the Jasper County Council would like to recognize Ms. Beatrice Graham as a 

lifelong resident of Jasper County; and  

  Whereas, Ms. Beatrice Graham was devoted to serving her county and her community; 

and  

Whereas, Ms. Beatrice Graham attends Greater Evangelistic Deliverance Church in 

Pineland, South Carolina, where her daughter is the Pastor; and  

Whereas, Ms. Beatrice Graham dedicated her adult life to her family as a full time Wife 

and Mother to her 8 children and her many grandchildren; and  

Whereas, Ms. Beatrice Graham is a celebrated mother of her church and routinely 

volunteers in community efforts extended by her church family;  

NOW  THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AND PROCLAIMED, That 

Jasper County Council in recognition of these contributions to Jasper County,  and her 

community be it known that this proclamation has been adopted by the Jasper County Council 

duly assembled this 12th day of October, 2023. 

       _____________________________  

       L. Martin Sauls IV, Chairman 

Attest:_____________________________  

            Wanda Simmons, Clerk to Council                      (Seal) 















 

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA 
JASPER COUNTY 

 
ORDINANCE #O-2023-18 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF  

JASPER COUNTY COUNCIL 
 
 

Clarifying that the provisions of Ordinance O-2023-06, 
providing that certain property subject to the Development 
Agreement entered into by the County and Conduit Street 
Partners, LLC (CSP) must be conveyed by the property’s 
current owner to the developer thereof, includes the 
developer’s successors and assigns by recognizing  and 
acknowledging the acquisition may be by an affiliate of 
CSP, to provide for the approval of an Exhibit inadvertently 
omitted, and matters related thereto.  
 

 
WHEREAS, on June 27, 2022, the Jasper County Council passed Ordinance O-2022-

14, recorded in Book 1107, Page 1678 of the Jasper County Register of Deeds, which 

ordinance approved the County’s entry into and execution of the development agreement 

(the “Development Agreement”) that had been negotiated between the County and 

Conduit Street Partners, LLC,  the “Developer”). 

 

WHEREAS, Ordinance O-2022-14 further contained a provision (in Paragraph 2 

thereof) that instituted a deadline of June 30, 2023, by which the “Owner/Developer” 

(defined therein as CSP) must acquire legal title to the Property (the “Acquisition 

Deadline”); otherwise, the Development Agreement would automatically be null and void.  

The phrase imposing the Acquisition Deadline read as follows: 

 
““[I]t is specifically recited that the provisions of the Development Agreement are 
expressly intended for the benefit of the Owner/Developer Conduit Street 
Partners. To the extent the Property is not conveyed to the Owner/Developer by 
the current legal owner by June 30, 2023, then the Development Agreement shall 
be void, regardless of any execution by the Council Chairman and delivery by the 
County Administrator on behalf of the County.” (emphasis added) 
 

WHEREAS, subsequently by Ordinance 0-2023-06, the acquisition deadline was 

amended to read “To the extent the Property is not conveyed to the Developer by the 

current legal owner by December 31, 2023, then the Development Agreement shall be 

void, regardless of any execution by the Council Chairman and delivery by the County 



2 
Sept 11, 2023  

Administrator on behalf of the County.” (emphasis added) to address permitting delays 

with outside agencies; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Developer has provided correspondence from the Army Corps of 

Engineers dated August 18, 2023, which states that the permit review has been 

transferred to another District in New Mexico because of workload constraints, likely 

resulting in further delays in receiving Corps permits in addition to delays and extended 

reviewing times of other controlling jurisdictional authorities and agencies whose 

approvals are required to obtain the Developer’s development permits; and  

 

WHEREAS, Ordinance O-2023- 06 defines the Developer “as Conduit Street Partners, 

LLC”; and  

 

WHEREAS, the Development Agreement defines the Developer as meaning “the Owner, 

along with any and all successors in title, assigns or lessees of the Owner who are 

transferred in writing from the Owner all or a portion of the Development Rights under 

this Agreement and undertake Development of any portion of the Property, as 

applicable in the context where such term is used.” and 

 

WHEREAS, the Development Agreement further defines the “Owner” as “Conduit 

Street Partners, LLC, a Maryland limited liability company, its corporate successors 

and any assignee, whereby such interest is assigned in writing to it by Owner. Owner 

has a present equitable interest in the Property by virtue of a contract to purchase with 

Current Legal Owner”. 

 

WHEREAS, as the terms of the Ordinance do not explicitly recognize that Conduit Street 

Partners, LLC, defined as “Owner/Developer” in the Development Agreement, includes 

the successors and assigns (including affiliated entities); and  

 

WHEREAS, in order to make such a clarification, it is not necessary to amend the 

Development Agreement, since the Development Agreement already defines the 

“Developer” and “Owner” as including the successors and assigns of Conduit Street 

Partners, LLC (which would include affiliated entities); and  

 

WHEREAS, after giving the matter consideration, the Jasper County Council has 

determined that it would be appropriate to pass an ordinance amending Ordinance 2023-

06 to explicitly recognize and provide that the property must be conveyed to the 

Owner/Developer as defined in the Development Agreement, and further extending the 

Acquisition Deadline to accommodate permitting matters with outside agencies; and  

 



3 
Sept 11, 2023  

WHEREAS, it has come to the County’s attention that an Exhibit to the Development 

Agreement (Exhibit E), which provided the form of the Assignment to be used when 

property was transferred to others was inadvertently omitted from the document and is 

not filed with the recorded Development Agreement, and that further, there was 

mislabeling of Exhibits by the mention of two separate exhibits (E and F);   

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the Jasper County Council, duly 

assembled and with authority of same, that the above premises be incorporated by 

reference; and:  

 

1. The last sentence of Paragraph 2 of Ordinance O-2023- 06 is hereby amended to 

read as set forth immediately below. 

 

2. “To the extent the Property is not conveyed by the current legal owner to the 

Developer, as Developer and Owner are defined in the Development Agreement 

recorded at in the office of the Jasper County Register of Deeds in Book 1107 at 

Pages 1678 - 1718, by the later of December 31, 2023, or ninety (90) days 

after receipt of all final outside agency land use and development 

permit approvals, including, but not limited to the Army Corps of 

Engineers permits, but in no event beyond December 31, 2024, then the 

Development Agreement shall be void, regardless of any execution by the Council 

Chairman and delivery by the County Administrator on behalf of the County.    

 

3. The extension of the Acquisition Deadline effected by this Ordinance shall not 

require any amendment or modification of the Development Agreement between 

the Developer and Jasper County.  Accordingly, the terms of such Development 

Agreement shall remain in effect, subject to the new Acquisition Deadline set forth 

above.  

 

4. The Form of Assignment attached hereto  (Exhibit E is a complete Assignment, 

Exhibit E-1 is a partial Assignment) to be used when transferring rights and 

obligation under the Development Agreement are approved by County Council, 

with leave for the County Administrator, upon advice from the County Attorney, to 

make such non-substantial modifications as may be desirable to best accomplish 

the identification of, and responsibilities and obligations being transferred. 

 

5. If any section, clause, paragraph, sentence or phrase of this ordinance, or 

application thereof any person or circumstances shall for any reason be held to be 

invalid or unconstitutional., the invalid section, clause paragraph, sentence, phrase 

or application shall no way affect the remainder of this ordinance: and it is hereby 

declared to be the intention of the County Council that the remainder of this 



4 
Sept 11, 2023  

ordinance would have passed notwithstanding the invalidity or unconstitutionality 

of any section, clause paragraph, sentence or phrase thereof. 

 

 

6. This ordinance shall take effect upon approval by Council. 

 

 

 

       
Martin L. Sauls, IV 
Chairman 

 
 
ATTEST: 
 
       
Wanda Simmons 
Clerk to Council 

 
 

ORDINANCE: # O-2023-18 
 
First Reading: September 18, 2023 
Public Hearing: October 2, 2023 
Second Reading: October 2, 2023 
2nd Public Hearing:  October 16, 2023 
Third Reading: October 16, 2023 
Adopted:       
 
 

_____________________________________________ 
 
 
 

Reviewed for form and draftsmanship by the Jasper County Attorney.  
 
 
         
__________________________      _______________ 
David Tedder         Date  

 

 

 

  



5 
Sept 11, 2023  

FIRST EXHIBIT TO ORDINANCE 
 

EXHIBIT E  

for Development Agreement 

 

Complete Assignment of Property 

 

 

EXHIBIT E 

TRANSFER AND ASSIGNMENT OF DEVELOPMENT RIGHTS AGREEMENT 

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) ASSIGNMENT AND ASSUMPTION 

     ) OF RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS 

COUNTY OF JASPER  ) UNDER DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 

 

 

THIS ASSIGNMENT AND ASSUMPTION OF RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS UNDER 

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT (this “Assignment and Assumption”) is dated this ______ day 

of ______, 202_, by and among CONDUIT STREET PARTNERS, LLC, a Maryland limited 

liability company (“Assignor”), ______________________, a ___________________________ 

(“Assignee”), and JASPER COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA (“Jasper County”). 

 

WHEREAS, on or about August 6, 2022, Assignor entered into a Development Agreement 

(the “Development Agreement”) with Jasper County, incident to development of certain real 

property located in the unincorporated area of Jasper County, consisting of approximately 38.84 

acres (the “Property”), as more particularly described in the Development Agreement recorded 

August 10, 2022, in the Office of the Register of Deeds for Jasper County, South Carolina in Book 

1107 at Page 1678, and which Property is described on Exhibit A attached thereto; and, 

 

WHEREAS, at the time that the Development Agreement was executed by Assignor and 

Jasper County and recorded, PAUL H. ANDERSON, EMILY A. TILLMAN and JOHN F. 

ANDERSON (collectively, “Sellers” or the “Current Legal Owners”) were the current legal 

owners of the Property, Assignor was the contract purchaser of all the Property pursuant to an 

Agreement of Purchase and Sale (the “Real Estate Contract”) between the Current Legal Owners, 

as sellers, and Assignor, as purchaser, and Assignor proposed to develop, or cause to be developed 

therein, residential and community amenity uses and related site infrastructure improvements, as 

further described in the Development Agreement; and, 

 

WHEREAS, on __________, 202___, Assignor and Assignee entered into an Agreement 

to Assign Agreement of Purchase and Sale (the “Agreement”) providing for the assignment by 

Assignor to Assignee of all of Assignor’s right to (x) purchase all the Property from the Current 

Legal Owners pursuant to the Real Estate Contract and (y) develop all the Property; and, 

 

WHERERAS, on _______________, 202_____, and pursuant to the Agreement, Assignor 

assigned to Assignee all of Assignor’s right to (x) purchase all the Property from the Current Legal 

Owners pursuant to the Real Estate Contract and (y) develop all the Property; and, 



6 
Sept 11, 2023  

 

WHEREAS, on _______________, 202_____, Assignee, as assignee of Assignor as 

purchaser under the Real Estate Contract, purchased and acquired all of the Property from the 

Current Legal Owners and now proposes to develop, or cause to be developed therein, residential 

and community amenity uses and related site infrastructure improvements, as further described in 

the Development Agreement; and,  

 

WHEREAS, it is the desire and intention of Assignor to assign to Assignee, and it is the 

desire and intention of Assignee to assume, all of Assignor’s rights, title, interests, privileges and 

obligations in, to and under the terms of the Development Agreement, thus necessitating the 

preparation and execution of the within Assignment and Assumption. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and adequacy 

whereof being herewith acknowledged, the parties hereby agree as follows, to wit: 

 

1. Assignment and Assumption of Rights.  Assignor does hereby transfer, assign, 

convey and deliver unto Assignee, its successors and assigns, all of Assignor’s rights, title, 

interests, privileges and obligations in, to and under the Development Agreement and the CSP 

PDD Standards (the “PDD Standards”), including, but not limited to, all of Assignor’s rights, title, 

interests and privileges in and under the Development Agreement to develop and construct up to 

Two Hundred Seventy-five (275) residential dwelling units on the Property.  Assignee hereby 

assumes and agrees to perform all of Assignor’s rights, privileges and obligations as described in 

the Development Agreement.  Assignee acknowledges receipt of the Development Agreement and 

all Exhibits thereto and agrees to be bound by the terms thereof and to develop the Property in 

accordance with such terms.  The rights, privileges and obligations hereby assigned and assumed 

shall be covenants running with the land, binding upon the parties hereto and their successors and 

assigns. 

 

2. Transfer of Obligation to Pay Development Fees.  The obligation of the Owner 

(as defined in the Development Agreement) to comply with the terms of Article XI of the 

Development Agreement, concerning the payment of the Development Fees and administrative 

charges, as such relate to the Property, is hereby included in Assignor’s assignment and Assignee’s 

assumption herein. Assignee hereby assumes the Owner’s obligations to pay the Development 

Fees and administrative charges related to the Property, as said obligations are set forth in Article 

XI of the Development Agreement. 

 

3. Enumeration of Assigned and Assumed Rights and Obligations.  For purposes 

of illustration only, and not as a limitation on the assignment and assumption effectuated by 

Paragraph 1 above, Assignor hereby assigns and Assignee hereby assumes and agrees to perform 

and be bound by the following: 

 

1.1 Assignor does hereby assign and transfer to Assignee all of Assignor’s 

rights, title and interest in, to and under the Development Agreement, including, but not limited 

to, all of Assignor’s rights, title, interests and privileges in and under the Development Agreement 

to develop and construct up to Two Hundred Seventy-five (275) residential dwelling units on the 

Property (the “Development Rights”); and 



7 
Sept 11, 2023  

 

1.2 Assignee assumes the obligation to pay any Development Fees and 

administrative charges identified in Article XI of the Development Agreement as they relate to the 

Property, as set forth in Paragraph 2 above. 

 

4. Default and Enforcement of Provisions.  As provided in Article XV of the 

Development Agreement and as herein provided, upon the failure of Assignor or Assignee to 

comply with the terms of the Development Agreement and this Assignment and Assumption 

incident to the Property, the non-defaulting party may pursue any and all legal or equitable 

remedies, including specific performance, against the defaulting party. 

 

5. Indemnification.  Assignee agrees to indemnify, defend and hold harmless 

Assignor, its agents, principals, successors and assigns, and their affiliates from and against all 

losses, costs, damages or other matters (including reasonable attorney fees) arising out of any 

breach by Assignee of the Development Agreement from and after the date of this Assignment and 

Assumption. Assignor agrees to indemnify, defend and hold harmless Assignee, its agents, 

principals, successors and assigns, and their affiliates from and against all losses, costs, damages 

or other matters (including reasonable attorney fees) arising out of any breach by Assignor of the 

Development Agreement prior to the date of this Assignment and Assumption. 

 

6. Notices.  Any notice, demand, request, consent, approval or communication among 

any of the parties hereto shall be in writing and shall be delivered or addressed as provided under 

Section XVII of the Development Agreement and shall be addressed as follows: 

 

As to Assignee: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

As to Assignor: 

 

Conduit Street Partners, LLC 

59 Franklin Street 

Annapolis, MD 21401 

Attn: Peter Zadoretzky 

E-mail:  pzadoretzky@oapartners.com 

 

mailto:pzadoretzky@oapartners.com


8 
Sept 11, 2023  

With a required copy to: 

 

Bouhan Falligant LLP 

One West Park Avenue 

Savannah, GA 31401 

Attn: John D. Northup III, Esq. 

E-mail:  jdnorthup@bouhan.com 

 

As to Jasper County: 

 

County Administrator, Jasper County 

358 Third Avenue 

Courthouse Square 

Post Office Box 1149 

Ridgeland, South Carolina 29936 

Attn:  Andrew P. Fulghum 

Email: afulghum@jaspercountysc.gov 

 

With a required copy to: 

 

County Attorney, Jasper County 

358 Third Avenue 

Courthouse Square 

Post Office Box 1149 

Ridgeland, South Carolina 29936 

Attn:  David L. Tedder, Esq. 

Email: dtedder@jaspercountysc.gov 

 

 

Binding Effect.  This Assignment and Assumption shall inure to the benefit of and be 

binding upon the respective parties hereto, their successors and assigns. 

 

Governing Law.  The within Assignment and Assumption shall be interpreted and 

construed and conform to the laws of the State of South Carolina. 

 

Reaffirmation of Terms.  All other terms, conditions, rights and privileges contained in 

the Development Agreement not specifically referenced herein shall remain in full force and effect 

and binding upon the parties hereto and their successors and assigns. 

 

Acknowledgment by Jasper County.  By its signature below, Jasper County hereby 

acknowledges the assignment of development rights and obligations as set forth herein.  Any 

further assignments by the Assignee must be provided to Jasper County, consistent with the terms 

of the Development Agreement. 

 

[Signatures Contained on Following Pages]

mailto:jdnorthup@bouhan.com
mailto:afulghum@jaspercountysc.gov
mailto:dtedder@jaspercountysc.gov


 

 9 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Assignment and 

Assumption to be duly executed as of the date set forth above. 

 

Assignor: 

 

CONDUIT STREET PARTNERS, LLC, 

a Maryland limited liability company 

Signed, sealed and delivered 

in the presence of: 

      By:            

      Name: 

Witness     Its: 

 

 

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA   ) 

       ) ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

COUNTY OF _________________  ) 

 

 I, the undersigned Notary Public for South Carolina, do hereby certify that 

________________________, as _______________________ of CONDUIT STREET 

PARTNERS, LLC, a Maryland limited liability company, on behalf of said company, 

known to me (or satisfactorily proven) to be the person whose name is subscribed to the 

within document, as the appropriate officer/member/manager of said company, who 

acknowledged the due execution of the foregoing instrument.  

 

 Witness my hand and seal this _____ day of _________________, 202___. 

 

 

             

      Notary Public for South Carolina 

      My commission expires: 

 

  



 

 10 

Assignee: 

 

___________________________________, 

a __________________________________ 

Signed, sealed and delivered 

in the presence of: 

      By:            

      Name: 

Witness     Its: 

 

 

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA   ) 

       ) ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

COUNTY OF _________________  ) 

 

 I, the undersigned Notary Public for South Carolina, do hereby certify that 

________________________, as _______________________ of 

__________________________, a ______________________, on behalf of said 

[corporation][company], known to me (or satisfactorily proven) to be the person whose 

name is subscribed to the within document, as the appropriate officer/member/manager 

of said [corporation][company], who acknowledged the due execution of the foregoing 

instrument.  

 

 Witness my hand and seal this _____ day of _________________, 202___. 

 

 

             

      Notary Public for South Carolina 

      My commission expires: 

  



 

 11 

SECOND EXHIBIT TO ORDINANCE 
 

EXHIBIT E -1 

for Development Agreement 

 

Partial Assignment of Property 

 

  



 

 12 

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) PARTIAL ASSIGNMENT AND 

) ASSUMPTION OF RIGHTS AND 

     ) OBLIGATIONS UNDER  

COUNTY OF JASPER  ) DEVELOPMENTAGREEMENT 

 

 

 THIS PARTIAL ASSIGNMENT AND ASSUMPTION OF RIGHTS AND 

OBLIGATIONS UNDER DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT (“Partial Assignment and 

Assumption”) is dated this ______ day of ______, 202_, by and among CONDUIT 

STREET PARTNERS, LLC, a Maryland limited liability company (“Assignor”), 

______________________, a ___________________________ (“Assignee”), and 

JASPER COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA (“Jasper County”). 

 

 WHEREAS, on or about August 6, 2022, Assignor entered into a Development 

Agreement (the “Development Agreement”) with Jasper County, incident to development 

of certain real property located in the unincorporated area of Jasper County, consisting of 

approximately 38.84 acres (the “Property”), as more particularly described in the 

Development Agreement recorded August 10, 2022, in the Office of the Register of Deeds 

for Jasper County, South Carolina in Book 1107 at Page 1678, and which Property is 

described on Exhibit “A” attached thereto; and,  

 

 WHEREAS, on __________, 202____, Assignor and Assignee entered into an 

Agreement of Sale (“Agreement”) providing for the sale by Assignor to Assignee of 

___________ acres (“Transferred Property”) as described on Exhibit “A” attached hereto; 

and, 

 

 WHEREAS, the remaining balance of the original Property made subject to the 

Development Agreement, and not previously transferred to others, containing 

approximately _________ acres, and all development rights and obligations specifically 

associated therewith, is hereby presently retained by the Assignor (“Retained Property”) as 

described in Exhibit “B” attached hereto; and, 

 

 WHEREAS, as an integral part of the conveyance of a portion of the original 

Property by Assignor to Assignee, it is the desire and intention of Assignor to assign to 

Assignee, and it is the desire and intention of Assignee to assume certain rights, privileges 

and obligations under the terms of the Development Agreement applicable to the 

Transferred Property, thus necessitating the preparation and execution of the within Partial 

Assignment and Assumption. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and 

adequacy whereof is herewith acknowledged, the parties hereby agree as follows, to wit: 

 

2. Partial Assignment and Assumption of Rights.  Assignor does hereby 

transfer, assign, convey and deliver unto Assignee, its successors and assigns, all of 

Assignor’s rights, privileges and obligations as described in the Development Agreement 

and the Malphrus Tract PDD Standards (“PDD Standards”) to develop up to __________ 



 

 13 

Dwelling Units applicable to the Transferred Property, together with up to __________ 

acres of Commercial development rights and commercial square footage of the types 

described below, except for those certain excluded obligations, rights and privileges 

(“Excluded Obligations”) identified below. Assignee hereby assumes and agrees to 

perform all of Assignor’s rights, privileges and obligations as described in the 

Development Agreement, applicable to the Transferred Property, except for the Excluded 

Obligations. Assignee acknowledges receipt of the Development Agreement and all 

Exhibits thereto and agrees to be bound by the terms thereof and to develop the Transferred 

Property in accordance with such terms. The rights and obligations hereby assigned and 

assumed shall be covenants running with the land, binding upon the parties hereto and their 

successors and assigns. 

3. Excluded Obligations. The obligation of the Owner or a Subsequent 

Developer, as applicable, to comply with the terms of Article XI of the Development 

Agreement, concerning the payment of a prorated amount of the Development Fees and 

administrative charges, as such relate to the Retained Property, only is hereby excluded 

from Assignor’s assignment and Assignee’s assumption herein; provided, however, 

Assignee assumes the obligations to pay a prorated amount of the Development Fees and 

administrative charges related to the Transferred Property and the transfer of it by Assignor 

to Assignee, as said obligations are set forth in Article XI of the Development Agreement. 

4. Enumeration of Assigned and Assumed Rights and Obligations.  For 

purposes of illustration only, and not as a limitation on the assignment and assumption 

effectuated by Paragraph 1 above, Assignor hereby assigns and Assignee hereby assumes 

and agrees to perform and be bound by the following: 

4.1 Assignor shall assign and does hereby transfer to Assignee all of 

Assignor’s rights, title and interest to develop up to _________ Dwelling Units and up to 

_______ acres of Commercial development and _________ square feet of 

___________(type of commercial development) (“Development Rights”); and 

4.2 Assignee assumes the obligation to pay any Development Fees and 

administrative charges identified in Article XI as they relate to the Transferred Property, 

as set forth in Paragraph 2 above; and 

5. Default and Enforcement of Provisions.  As provided in Section XV of 

the Development Agreement and as herein provided, upon the failure of Assignor or 

Assignee to comply with the terms of the Development Agreement and this Partial 

Assignment and Assumption incident to the Property, the non-defaulting party may pursue 

any and all legal or equitable remedies, including specific performance, against the 

defaulting party. 

6. Indemnification.  Assignee agrees to indemnify, defend and hold harmless 

Assignor, its agents, principals, successors and assigns, and their affiliates from and against 

all losses, costs, damages or other matters arising out of any breach by Assignee of the 

Development Agreement. 



 

 14 

7. Notices.  Any notice, demand, request, consent, approval or communication 

among any of the parties hereto shall be in writing and shall be delivered or addressed as 

provided under Section XVII of the Development Agreement and shall be addressed as 

follows: 

As to Assignee: 

___________________________ 

___________________________ 

___________________________ 

 

With a required copy to: 

__________________________ 

__________________________ 

__________________________ 

 

To Assignor: 

Conduit Street Partners, LLC 

59 Franklin Street 

Annapolis, MD 21401 

Attn: Peter Zadoretzky 

E-mail:  pzadoretzky@oapartners.com 

 

With a required copy to: 

 

Bouhan Falligant LLP 

One West Park Avenue 

Savannah, GA 31401 

Attn: John D. Northup III, Esq. 

E-mail:  jdnorthup@bouhan.com 

 

 

8. Binding Effect.  This Partial Assignment and Assumption shall inure to the 

benefit of and be binding upon the respective parties hereto, their successors and assigns. 

9. Governing Law.  The within Partial Assignment and Assumption shall be 

interpreted and construed and conform to the laws of the State of South Carolina. 

10. Reaffirmation of Terms.  All other terms, conditions, rights and privileges 

contained in the Development Agreement not specifically referenced herein shall remain 

in full force and effect and binding upon the parties hereto and their successors and assigns. 

11. Acknowledgment by Jasper County.  By its signature below, Jasper 

County hereby acknowledges the assignment of development rights and obligations as set 

forth herein. Any further assignments by the Assignee must be provided to Jasper County, 

consistent with the terms of the Development Agreement. 

  

mailto:pzadoretzky@oapartners.com
mailto:jdnorthup@bouhan.com


 

 15 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Partial Assignment and 

Assumption to be duly executed as of the date set forth above.  

 

Signed, sealed and delivered 

in the presence of: 

      ASSIGNEE: 

 

 

      By:            

Witness 

 

      By:       

Notary     Name Printed:     

        

      Its:      

            

      

 

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA   ) 

       ) ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

COUNTY OF _________________  ) 

 

 I, the undersigned Notary Public for South Carolina, do hereby certify that 

________________________, as _______________________ of 

__________________________, on behalf of __________________________, known 

to me (or satisfactorily proven) to be the person whose name is subscribed to the within 

document,  as the appropriate officer/member/manager of _______________________, 

who acknowledged the due execution of the foregoing instrument.  

 

 Witness my hand and seal this _____ day of _________________, 202___. 

 

 

             

      Notary Public for South Carolina 

      My commission expires:    

 

  



 

 16 

Signed, sealed and delivered 

in the presence of: 

      ASSIGNOR: 

 

CONDUIT STREET PARTNERS, LLC, 

      a Maryland limited liability company 

      

Signed, sealed and delivered 

in the presence of: 

      By:            

      Name: 

Witness     Its: 

 

 

 

 

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA   ) 

       ) ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

COUNTY OF _________________  ) 

 

 I, the undersigned Notary Public for South Carolina, do hereby certify that 

________________________, as _______________________ of CONDUIT STREET 

PARTNERS, LLC, a Maryland limited liability company, on behalf of said company, 

known to me (or satisfactorily proven) to be the person whose name is subscribed to the 

within document, as the appropriate officer/member/manager of said company, who 

acknowledged the due execution of the foregoing instrument.  

 

 Witness my hand and seal this _____ day of _________________, 202___. 

 

 

             

      Notary Public for South Carolina 

      My commission expires: 

 

  



 

 17 

  

  

Signed, sealed and delivered 

in the presence of: 

 

WITNESSES:     JASPER COUNTY, SOUTH 

CAROLINA 

 

_______________________________ By:________________________________ 

___________, County Administrator 

 

_______________________________

 Attest:________________________________ 

      ___________, Clerk to Council 

 

 

 

 STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA  ) 

          )        ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

COUNTY    OF   JASPER   ) 

 

 

I HEREBY CERTIFY, that on this ____ day of ___________, 202__, 

before me, the undersigned Notary Public of the State and County aforesaid, personally 

appeared _________________________ and __________________, known to me (or 

satisfactorily proven) to be the person whose name is subscribed to the within document,  

as the appropriate officials of Jasper County, South Carolina, who acknowledged the due 

execution of the foregoing instrument. 

 

Witness my hand and official seal this the ______ day of __________, 2023. 

  

 

___________________________________ 

Notary Public for South Carolina 

My Commission Expires: ____________ 

 

 

  



 

 18 

EXHIBIT A 

DESCRIPTION OF TRANSFERRED PROPERTY 

 

 

 

 

 

  



 

 19 

EXHIBIT B 

DESCRIPTION OF RETAINED PROPERTY 

 

 





Jasper County 
Treasurer Contracts
2023 -  2024

Scope of Work Vendor Date of Contract Contract Amount
Balance of budget  

for FY23-24

Budgeted Amount for FY23-24 48,000.00                  

(1) Treasury operations audit and cash hand-off Mauldin & Jenkins 3/30/2023 36,560.00                11,440.00                  

(2) Liquidity and treasury analysis three+one 7/17/2023 12,500.00                (1,060.00)                   
(3) Addendum #1 scope change Mauldin & Jenkins 9/18/2023 -                             (1,060.00)                   
(4) Addendum #2 scope and fee addition Mauldin & Jenkins 9/18/2023 21,560.00                (22,620.00)                

Summary of  Treasurer Agreements:

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

Mike Skinner, the Treasurer-elect in March 2023 requested a treasury operations audit and cash hand-off services by Mauldin & 
Jenkins, an audit firm based in Columbia, SC.  The treasury operations audit and the cash hand-off services were scheduled to begin 
in July 2023 and were included in the fiscal year 2024 budget in the amount of $48,000.  The treasury operations audit and cash hand-
off contract was executed by the County Administrator.

The Treasurer presented to Council on July 17, 2023, and agreement for liquidity and treasury analysis service by three+one in the 
amount of $12,500.  The Council approved the agreement on July 17th and the contract was executed shortly there-after.

In September, the Treasurer and Maulding & Jenkins determined that the operations audit and cash hand-off services were either 
not necessary or were not possible to perform.  Therefore, the Treasurer and Mauldin & Jenkins agreed to change scope of the 
original agreement at no additional cost.  The change in scope is labeled Addendum #1.  Mr. Fulghum approved Mr. Skinner to sign 
Addendum #1 since there was no change in price, but only in scope. 

At the same time, that Mr. Skinner provided Addendum #1, he also presented a third agreement entitled Addendum #2 Scope and 
Fee Addition to March 30, 2023 Engagement Letter.   Addendum #2 provides for the following additional services at a cost of 
$21,560:   1)  Assess the Treasurer's Department compliance with governing escheatment regulations and help the department 
quantify an amount eligible for escheatment; and 2) Assess Treasurer Department's policies and procedures related to returned 
checks, and if applicable, perform data analysis to assess any trends and/or quantification of associated dollar amounts.  Addendum 
#2 is being brought forward to the Council for approval since it is a new contract and is not included in the budget for fiscal year 
2024. 



 

1 
 

                               Mauldin & Jenkins  
             508 Hampton St,  
             Suite 100 
             Columbia, SC 29201 
 

March 30, 2023 

Mr. Andrew Fulghum 
County Administrator 
Jasper County 
358 Third Avenue 
Ridgeland, SC 29936 
 
Dear Mr. Fulghum: 

Thank you for the opportunity to serve Jasper County (“County”). The purpose of this engagement 
letter is to document your agreement for Mauldin & Jenkins (“M&J”) to consult with, and assist 
you in conducting an assessment (“Assessment”) of your Treasury Department (“Department”).   

We understand that a new County Treasurer will take office in the coming months and the purpose 
of the Assessment is to document and memorialize current Office operations, assess financial 
transactions and cash on-hand, and evaluate current operations with a focus on efficiency, 
effectiveness, customer service, and transparency. 

A. Engagement Objectives, Scope, and Approach 

The Assessment will help prevent “knowledge drain” when current staffing transition out of current 
roles and will provide the incoming Treasurer with documentation, and an objective assessment 
of current operations to be leveraged when taking office. 

Objectives 

Assessment objectives include the following: 

• Gain an understanding of the Department’s taxonomy (the Office’s key objectives, 
services,  and functions) 

• Gain an understanding of key business processes including stakeholders, systems, 
dependencies, controls, inputs/outputs, timing, and end-user experiences 

• Assess the Department’s current staffing model from a resource, job function, and 
workload perspective 

• Document key operational and financial processes and milestones 
• Assess financial transactions and cash balances for the previous fiscal year ending June 

30, 2023 
• Identify “what is working well”, “what needs improvement”, and “areas for potential risk or 

concern” 
• Develop recommendations that help to maximize the Department’s operational and 

financial efficiency and effectiveness while maintain proper internal controls and risk 
mitigation strategies 

• Provide a Roadmap for the incoming Treasurer upon taking office 



 

2 
 

 
Approach 

M&J will perform the following specific tasks/activities for this engagement: 

• Conduct interviews with all Department personnel to understand the current operational 
and financial environment 
o During the interviews we will understand the Department’s taxonomy, staffing 

assignments and workload, key business processes, use of technology, customer 
interactions, and departmental milestones 

• Conduct interviews with County leadership and other stakeholders of the Department to 
understand relevant touchpoints, interactions, and customer service 

• Request relevant Department information such as, but not limited to, financial data, 
resource information, position descriptions, policies and procedures, performance 
measures, operating statistics, etc. 

• Compare the current environment to leading practices 
• Document key operational and financial processes and milestones 
• Review financial supporting documentation (bank statements, financial statements, 

receipts, etc.) for the previous fiscal year ending June 30, 2023 to assess reconciliations 
and cash balances 

• Develop meaningful recommendations to help enhance efficiency, effectiveness, 
customer service, and transparency 

• Prepare and deliver a draft report 
• Receive feedback/comments for the draft report 
• Prepare and deliver a final report 

Timing/Deliverable 

We estimate a project duration of 10 weeks to complete the Assessment described in this 
engagement letter.  We plan to come onsite to perform the tasks/activities listed above for 
approximately 2-3 days.  We will issue a draft and final report that summarizes our tasks 
performed, the information gleaned from the interviews and information received, a summary of 
key Departmental processes and milestone, a list of recommendations (as applicable), and a 
Roadmap for implementation. 

 
B. Engagement Team 

David Roberts will serve as the engagement partner and will be responsible for overseeing the 
engagement and the delivery of all services to you. David has significant experience assessing 
financial functions for governments.  Kate Russell will serve as the engagement manager and 
possess significant experience serving in financial management roles within state government.  
Other professionals from our Government Practice will also serve in delivering services against 
our scope of work.   

 



 

3 
 

C. Engagement Assumptions, Client Acknowledgements, Responsibilities and 
Representations 

Our Services, Fees and work schedule are based upon the following assumptions, 
acknowledgements, representations, and understandings with you: 

• The services described in this engagement letter constitute an advisory engagement 
conducted under American Institute of Certified Public Accountants standards for consulting 
services. 

• Our work will be to assist and advise you with this project. As stated below and for clarity, we 
will not, nor does the County desire us to, perform any management functions, make 
management decisions, or otherwise perform in a capacity equivalent to that of an employee 
or officer of the County. 

• The County will determine the extent of services it wishes Mauldin & Jenkins to provide and 
will undertake the responsibilities set forth in this engagement letter. 

• The County will designate an employee or employees within its senior management who will 
make or obtain all management decisions with respect to this engagement on a timely basis. 

• The County will ensure that we have access to key people, facilities and data, and that all 
levels of your employees and contractors will cooperate fully and timely with us. The success 
of this engagement is dependent upon full openness, communications, cooperation and timely 
direction. 

• The County agrees that all assumptions set forth in this engagement letter are accurate and 
agrees to provide us with such further information we may need and which we can rely on to 
be accurate and complete. We will be entitled to rely on all of your decisions and approvals 
made independently, and we will not be obligated to evaluate, advise on, confirm or reject 
such decisions and approvals. 

• The County will evaluate the adequacy and results of services and will let us know immediately 
of any problems or issues you perceive in our personnel, services or deliverables. 

• Mauldin & Jenkins will provide recommendations as applicable.  The County is responsible 
for evaluating such recommendations and implementing the recommendations as deemed 
appropriate by the County. 

• Untimely review, or access to people or information could have an impact on the project 
schedule. 

• In no event shall Mauldin & Jenkins (or its personnel) be liable to the County – whether a claim 
be in tort, contract or otherwise—for any consequential, indirect, lost profit or similar damages 
relating to the services provided under this engagement letter, except to the extent finally 
determined to have resulted from the willful misconduct or fraudulent behavior of Mauldin & 
Jenkins relating to such service. 

The fulfillment and confirmation of these responsibilities, acknowledgements and representations 
are critical to the success of this engagement. The successful delivery of our services, and the 
fees charged, are also dependent on your timely and effective completion of your responsibilities, 
the accuracy and completeness of the assumptions, and timely decisions and approvals by your 
management. You will be responsible for any delays, additional costs or other liabilities caused 
by or associated with any deficiencies in the assumptions or in carrying out your responsibilities. 

 



 

4 
 

D. Fees 

M&J is proposing to complete the services described in this engagement letter based on time and 
material for actual work performed based on the following hourly rates: 

Professional Level Hourly Rates 

Partners $310 

Directors/Senior Managers $285 

Senior Staff $215 

Staff $190 
 
We estimate fees to be at $36,560 to complete the scope of services described in this 
engagement letter.  We will invoice the County upon delivery of the draft and final reports for 
actual incurred costs.  Payment is expected within 30 days.   

The above fees are based on anticipated cooperation from your personnel (including complete 
and timely receipt of requested information and the scheduling and conduct of requested 
interviews) and the assumption that unexpected circumstances (including scope changes) will not 
be encountered during the project.  If significant additional time is necessary, or if additional scope 
elements are requested, we will discuss it with the designated client project sponsor and arrive at 
a new fee estimate before we incur the additional costs.     

 

*********** 

The attached Terms and Conditions apply to this engagement and are an integral part of our 
agreement. Please indicate your agreement to these arrangements by signing and returning a 
copy of this engagement letter with the completed acknowledgement section. 

 

We appreciate the opportunity to be of service to you and look forward to working with you on this 
engagement. 

Sincerely, 

 

 

David Roberts, Mauldin & Jenkins 
Government Advisory Lead Partner 
 

 

 

 



 

5 
 

E. Acknowledgement and Acceptance 

We have read and agree to this engagement letter, the attached and incorporated Terms and 
Conditions. Jasper County and its signatory below represents that said signatory is its duly 
authorized representative and has the requisite power and authority to bind Jasper County to the 
undertakings and obligations contained herein. 

Acknowledged and accepted: 

Jasper County 

By:  
 
 
Name:  
 
 
Title:  
 

Andrew P. Fulghum

County Administrator













 

1 
 

                               Mauldin & Jenkins  
             508 Hampton St,  
             Suite 100 
             Columbia, SC 29201 
 

September 18, 2023 

Mr. Michael Skinner 
County Treasurer 
Jasper County 
358 Third Avenue 
Ridgeland, SC 29936 
 
RE: Addendum #1: Scope Modification to March 30, 2023 Engagement Letter 
 

Dear Mr. Skinner: 

Thank you for the opportunity to serve Jasper County (“County”). The purpose of this addendum 

letter is to re-define Mauldin & Jenkins’ (“M&J”) scope based on our original executed agreement 

dated March 30, 2023.  As you have now taken office and associated yourself with the Treasury 

Department (“Department”) and its immediate needs, we understand that you desire M&J to focus 

solely on the following critical services: 

1. Assist in defining and assessing the mission-critical needs of the Department 

2. Assess current internal controls for key Departmental processes 

3. Assess apportionment formulas/methodologies currently utilized by the Department 

Each scope of work is further described below. 

1. Assist in defining and assessing the mission-critical needs of the Department.  M&J 

will review current governance over the Department to identify key mandated functions.  

M&J will also leverage the County’s relationships and other M&J clients to identify other key 

services/functions delivered by other Treasury Departments in the state through virtual 

meetings.  M&J will help create a taxonomy of key service delivery areas for the Department 

and will work with leadership to better define workflow and business processes where there 

are gaps.  A summary report will be developed and provided. 

2. Assess current internal controls for key Departmental processes.  M&J will assess the 

internal control environment for key Department functional processes to evaluate the 

strength or existence of internal controls.  We will perform the assessment by conducting 

interviews and performing job shadowing so we can learn both how business processes and 

systems are supposed to operate and how they actually operate.  M&J will provide 

recommendations as appropriate to enhance the internal control environment.  A summary 

report will be developed and provided. 

  



 

2 
 

3. Assess apportionment formulas/methodologies currently utilized by the Department.  

M&J will obtain a listing from the Department as to the formulas/methodologies used in the 

apportionment process.  M&J will compare the current formulas/methodologies to available 

governance artifacts for apportionment processes to assess compliance.  M&J will also 

sample test some of the apportionment formulas/methodologies within the Department’s 

current tax system.  A summary report will be developed and provided. 

Timing 

We estimate a project duration of 8-10 weeks to complete the preceding described scopes of 

work.   

 

Fees 

We believe that we can complete the modified scopes of service previously described in this 

addendum letter within the original fee budget of $36,560 as described in the mutually executed 

March 30, 2023 engagement letter.  As of September 15, 2023, M&J has incurred approximately 

$8,135 in fees.   

 

*********** 

The assumptions and standard terms and conditions included in the March 30, 2023 mutually 
executed engagement letter apply to this addendum.  Please indicate your agreement to these 
arrangements by signing and returning a copy of this addendum letter with the completed 
acknowledgement section. 

We appreciate the opportunity to be of service to you and look forward to working with you on this 

engagement. 

Sincerely, 

 

 

David Roberts, Mauldin & Jenkins 
Government Advisory Lead Partner 

 

 

 

  



 

3 
 

 

A. Acknowledgement and Acceptance 

We have read and agree to this addendum letter.  Jasper County and its signatory below 

represents that said signatory is its duly authorized representative and has the requisite power 

and authority to bind Jasper County to the undertakings and obligations contained herein. 

Acknowledged and accepted: 

Jasper County 

By:  

 

 

Name:  

 

 

Title:  

 



 

1 
 

                               Mauldin & Jenkins  
             508 Hampton St,  
             Suite 100 
             Columbia, SC 29201 
 

September 18, 2023 

Mr. Michael Skinner 
County Treasurer 
Jasper County 
358 Third Avenue 
Ridgeland, SC 29936 
 
RE: Addendum #2 Scope and Fee Addition to March 30, 2023 Engagement Letter 
 

Dear Mr. Skinner: 

Thank you for the opportunity to serve the Jasper County (“County”) Treasury Department 

(“Department”). The purpose of this addendum letter is to add additional scopes of services based 

on your request with corresponding additional fee estimates. 

We understand that you desire M&J to provide the following additional scopes of service: 

1. Assess the Department’s compliance with governing escheatment regulations and help 

the Department quantify an amount eligible for escheatment 

2. Assess the Department’s policies and procedures related to returned checks received 

for payment and if applicable, perform data analysis to assess any trends or and/or 

quantification of associated dollar amounts 

Each scope of work is further described below. 

1. Assess the Department’s compliance with governing escheatment regulations and 

help the Department quantify an amount eligible for escheatment.  M&J will review 

governing requirements applicable to the Department related to escheatment. M&J will 

attempt to quantify amounts held by the Department that meet escheatment standards.  

M&J will make recommendations as appropriate. 

 

2. Assess the Department’s policies and procedures related to returned checks received 

for payment and if applicable, perform data analysis to assess any trends or and/or 

quantification of associated dollar amounts.  M&J will review the Department’s policies 

and procedures for the handling of returned checks received by the Department for 

payment.  M&J will review financial records and transactions from the past five years to 

attempt to quantify the amount of returned checks and the amounts actually recovered.  

M&J will make recommendations as appropriate. 

Timing 

We estimate a project duration of 8-10 weeks to complete the preceding described scopes of 

work which can run in parallel to existing work being performed for the Department. 



 

2 
 

 

Fees 

M&J will complete the services described in this addendum letter based on time and material for 

actual work performed based on the same following hourly rates that were included in the mutually 

executed March 30, 2023 engagement letter.  We estimate additional fees of $21,560 to complete 

the work described in this addendum letter.  Payment is expected within 30 days.   

Professional Level Hourly Rates 

Partners $310 

Directors/Senior Managers $285 

Senior Staff $215 

Staff $190 

 

The above fees are based on anticipated cooperation from your personnel (including complete 

and timely receipt of requested information and the scheduling and conduct of requested 

interviews) and the assumption that unexpected circumstances (including scope changes) will not 

be encountered during the project.  If significant additional time is necessary, or if additional scope 

elements are requested, we will discuss it with the designated client project sponsor and arrive at 

a new fee estimate before we incur the additional costs.     

 

*********** 

The assumptions and standard terms and conditions included in the March 30, 2023 mutually 
executed engagement letter apply to this addendum.  Please indicate your agreement to these 
arrangements by signing and returning a copy of this addendum letter with the completed 
acknowledgement section. 

We appreciate the opportunity to be of service to you and look forward to working with you on this 

engagement. 

Sincerely, 

 

 

David Roberts, Mauldin & Jenkins 
Government Advisory Lead Partner 

 

 

 

  



 

3 
 

 

A. Acknowledgement and Acceptance 

We have read and agree to this addendum letter.  Jasper County and its signatory below 

represents that said signatory is its duly authorized representative and has the requisite power 

and authority to bind Jasper County to the undertakings and obligations contained herein. 

Acknowledged and accepted: 

Jasper County 

By:  

 

 

Name:  

 

 

Title:  

 





358 Third Ave.                                                                                         Page 1 of 1 

Jasper County  

Clerk to Council 
 

358 Third Avenue     

Ridgeland, South Carolina  29936 

Phone (843) 717-3696    
 

        

Wanda Simmons  
Clerk to Council  

wsimmons@jaspercountysc.gov   

 

 

Jasper County Council 

Staff Report 

Meeting Date: 10.16.2023 

Board Name: Planning Commission 

  

New Members Needed 2 

Submitted For: Approval to appoint 2 new members 

Term: 4-year terms 

 

Description: The Planning Commission needs two new Planning Commission Members due to 

vacancies. We have received the following three applications (which are attached) from the 

following applicants: 

 

    Name:    :      

1. Mr. Lee Steven Gramling 

2. Mr. Brent Allen Robinson 

3. Ms. Cathleen DeCourcy       

  

 

Recommendation: Staff recommends approval of two of the three candidates submitted for the 

Planning Commission that are currently proposed. Additionally, as the two vacancies both had 

very close term expiration dates, Staff recommends that these two appointments be for the full 

length of 4-year terms with an effective appointment date of 10.16.2023 and term expiration date 

of 10.16.2027. 

mailto:wsimmons@jaspercountysc.gov






















































































STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA 
JASPER COUNTY 

 
RESOLUTION # R-2023-19 

 

RESOLUTION OF JASPER COUNTY COUNCIL 
 
 

To declare certain property to be surplus and 
authorize its sale or disposition – Emergency 
Services Division – Self Contained Breathing 
Apparatus and Cylinders  

 
 
WHEREAS, the Jasper County Emergency Services Director has advised the 

County Chief Procurement Officer that several self-contained breathing 

apparatus (SCBAs) and spare SCBA Cylinders which were acquired during the 

consolidation of the Levy Volunteer Fire Department into the Emergency 

Services Division, are non-useable due to their composition, incompatibility, or 

exceeding their service life in the fire service industry, and 

 

WHEREAS, the Emergency Services Division requests the County declare the 

property surplus, and allow the Emergency Services Division to liquidate the 

items identified in Exhibit ‘A’ as attached to this document, and 

 

WHEREAS, the County Administrator has identified the property as no longer 

necessary or useful to the County for the accomplishment of its mission, and 

recommends that these items be declared surplus and sold or otherwise disposed;  

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the property identified in 

Exhibit ‘A’ is declared surplus pursuant to the Jasper County Purchasing and 

Procurement Ordinance, Ordinance #05-04 (as codified in Chapter 2, Article V of 

the Jasper County Code of Ordinances, Sections 2-401 et seq.), and 1) the Chief 

Procurement Officer of the County is authorized and directed to coordinate with 

the Emergency Services Division Director in the liquidation of the property in 

accordance with that Ordinance, including the use of on-line liquidation services 



 2 

such as Gov.deals; 2) the County Administrator is authorized to execute a bill of 

sale or transfer of surplus self-contained breathing apparatus and cylinders and 

provide such other necessary and desirable documents as may be needed to 

accomplish the auctioning/liquidation; and 3) the County Administrator and the 

Director of Administrative Services is authorized to place the proceeds in the 

“Miscellaneous Revenue” account of the County. nominally utilized in the 

County’s use of online property liquidation services. 

  

This Resolution made this ______ day of October, 2023. 

 

 
_________________________________  

L. Martin Sauls, Chairman 

 

ATTEST: 

_________________________________  

Wanda Simmons, Clerk to Council 

 

 

Reviewed for form and draftsmanship by the Jasper County Attorney. 

 

 

______________________________________ 

David L. Tedder   Date   

 
 
 
      
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 3 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Exhibit ‘A’ 
 

Pallet # 1 (Cylinders) Manufacture Date 

msa 6 of 2009 

msa 6 of 2009 

msa 6 of 2009 

msa 6 of 2009 

msa 6 of 2009 

msa 6 of 2009 

msa 6 of 2009 

msa 6 of 2009 

msa 6 of 2009 

msa 6 of 2009 

msa 6 of 2009 

scott 2 of 2003 

scott 6 of 2003 

scott 2 of 2003 

scott 6 of 2005 

scott 6 of 2003 

scott 6 of 2005 

sci 5 of 2005 

sci 5 of 2005 

sci 5 of 2005 

sci 5 of 2005 

sci 5 of 2005 

sci 5 of 2005 

sci 5 of 2005 

sci 5 of 2005 

isi 5 of 2003 

sci 5 of 2005 

sci 5 of 2005 

isi 3 of 2003 

isi 3 of 2000 

isi 6 of 2002 

msa 6 of 2009 

sci 5 of 2005 

isi 5 of 2003 



 4 

carleton 7 of 2006 

carleton 7 of 2007 

carleton 7 of 2007 

carleton 7 of 2007 

carleton 7 of 2007 

carleton 7 of 2006 

carleton 7 of 2007 

carleton 7 of 2007 

carleton 7 of 2006 

Survivair 5 of 1995 

 
 
Pallet # 2 

24 isi masks 

24 isi packs a Variety of Viking and Magnum  

 
 
Pallet # 3   
1 MSA pack and mask in 

box  
13 MSA Firehawk SCBA 

packs 

NFPA2007 

Edition 

3 MSA mask's   

 



STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA 
COUNTY OF JASPER  

RESOLUTION NO. R-2023-20 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE SOLE SOURCE PROCUREMENT OF A LEKTRO 
AIRCRAFT TOW VEHICLE, WITH SPECIFIED OPTIONAL ACCESSORIES, FOR 
SKYBLUE AVIATION FBO, RIDGELAND -CLAUDE DEAN AIRPORT. 

 

 WHEREAS, SkyBlue Aviation, a subsidiary wholly owned Jasper County 
entity,  operates the airport FBO and currently provides aviation fuel for purchase 
by the flying public;  

 WHEREAS, SkyBlue Aviation also operates an approximate 184,000 square 
foot aircraft parking ramp at Terminal North for the convenience of the transient 
and based aircraft customers;  

 WHEREAS, the SkyBlue Aviation aircraft customer base now includes single-
engine piston, multi-engine piston, single-engine piston and multi-engine turbine 
helicopters, single-engine and multi-engine turbine airplane with maximum gross 
takeoff weights up to and including 45,000 lbs;   

 WHEREAS, SkyBlue Aviation has identified the need for a aircraft tug on 
occasion to reposition aircraft on the ramp based upon fueling, scheduling and 
logistical needs;  

 WHREAS, SkyBlue Aviation receives requests from turbine aircraft 
customers for ground power unit (GPU) assist to preserve aircraft batteries during 
starting, refueling, and ground heating/cooling operations;  

 WHEREAS, SkyBlue Aviation likewise expects to receive requests from piston 
aircraft customers for ground power unit (GPU) assists for depleted batteries;  

 WHEREAS, SkyBlue Aviation expects to provide aircraft towing services to its 
future T-hangar rental customers;  

 WHEREAS, County staff and the Airport Manager specifically has researched 
the matter and determined there is only one provider of appropriate equipment to 
meet the needs of the Airport, being LEKTRO, whose address is 1190 S.E. Flightline 
Drive, Warrenton, Oregon 97146 – 9692; and  



WHEREAS, the Lektro series of aircraft tugs provide the only known self-
propelled battery-powered aircraft tug having both tow capabilities and GPU 
capabilities located on the same vehicle chassis, with tow adapters available for the 
General Aviation (GA) fleet customers currently procuring FBO services from 
SkyBlue Aviation and operating at the Ridgeland – Claude Dean Airport.  

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by Jasper County Council, in a 
meeting duly assembled, that: 

 

1. The Jasper County Council hereby ratifies the sole source procurement 
of the aforementioned Lektro Aircraft Towing Vehicle, Model AP8700CX in 
the estimated amount of $100,592.00. 

 

2. Appropriations for the equipment to be extracted from the proceeds of the 
County’s 100% match of the $2,500,000 South Carolina Department of 
Commerce Rural Initiative Grant. 

 

3. The County Administrator and his designees are hereby authorized to 
execute Order Confirmation #92023SC providing for the manufacture and 
delivery of the Lektro Model AP8700CX and associated attachments to 
SkyBlue Aviation FBO. 

 

SIGNED, SEALED AND DATED, this 16th day of October 2023. 

 

       _________________________________ 
L. Martin Sauls, IV, Chairperson  

 

 

__________________________________ 
Wanda Simmons, Clerk to Council 

 

Approved as to Form: 

 

___________________________________________________ 
David L. Tedder, Jasper County Attorney Date 
 



Project Name: Coosawhatchie Fire Station

Project Budget: $7,830,000

Jasper County Date

Name, Title

  JASPER COUNTY - WORK AUTHORIZATION

In acordance with Paragraph 1.1.1 of the Agreement Between Owner and Construction Manager, Owner hereby authorizes the Construction 

Manager to proceed with Preconstruction Services including preparation of a Guaranteed Maximum Price (GMP) proposal for the following 

project:

 Work Authorization  - No. 004 10.10.2023

Note: Work Authorization budget does not include costs for the land purchase 

or items associated with land acquisition

































































STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA 

COUNTY OF JASPER 

RESOLUTION/PROCLAMATION NUMBER #R-2023-21 

A resolution of Jasper County Council approving an Intergovernmental 
Agreement regarding Fire Protection and Emergency Services between 
Jasper County, South Carolina and the Town of Ridgeland, and matters 

related thereto 
 
Whereas, a regular meeting of the Jasper County Council was held in Jasper County 
Council Chambers on October ___, 2023 at 6:30 pm with a majority of County Council 
members being present and constituting a quorum to consider this Resolution; and 
 
Whereas, the County Council of Jasper County, South Carolina desires to enter into a 
fire protection and emergency services agreement with the Town of Ridgeland, and in 
connection therewith has submitted an agreement to the Town of Ridgeland for its 
consideration, a copy of which is attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit ‘A’; 
and 
 
Whereas, the Jasper County is authorized under South Carolina Code of Laws to enter 
into agreements with other governmental entities for the provision of governmental 
services; and 
 
Whereas, all funds expended by the Jasper County to fulfill its obligations under the 
Agreement set forth in Exhibit ‘A’ shall be paid to the Town of Ridgeland, South Carolina 
in three (3) annual payments as set forth in Exhibit “A”; and 
 
Whereas, the Agreement marked Exhibit ‘A’ attached hereto and made a part hereof, 
between Jasper County South Carolina and the Town of Ridgeland for Fire Protection and 
Emergency Service(s), be approved and accepted and is hereby approved and accepted in 
all respects. 
 
Now Therefore, be it resolved by the Jasper County Council, the Council Duly 
assembled, that: 
 
The Jasper County Council finds the best interests and public welfare of the citizens of 
Jasper County makes it desirable to enter into the Fire Protection and Emergency Service 
Agreement with the Town of Ridgeland, and hereby authorizes and approves the Fire 
Protection and Emergency Service Agreement attached hereto and incorporated by 
reference herein as Exhibit ‘A’, to be executed by the Jasper County Administrator. 
 



And be it further resolved that the Jasper County Administrator is delegated with the 
authority to negotiate and make further changes or amendments to the contract as 
approved for legal sufficiency by the Jasper County attorney provided the amount and 
duration of consideration approved by the resolution is not altered or amended without 
Jasper County Council approval. 
 
 

GIVEN UNDER MY HAND THIS _____   
     DAY OF OCTOBER, 2023. 
 

_______________________________                   
L. Martin Sauls, IV 
Chairman, Jasper County Council 

 
ATTEST: 
 
___       
Wanda Simmons, Clerk to Council  
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
___________________________ 
David L. Tedder  
County Attorney     
 
 
 
  



INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF JASPER AND THE TOWN OF R1DGELAND 

REGARDING FIRE PROTECTION AND EMERGENCY SERVICES 

THIS AGREEMENT made and entered into this ____ day of October, 2023, by and between the 
County of Jasper, South Carolina and the Town of Ridgeland, South Carolina. 

WHEREAS, Jasper County desires to provide for its citizens in the areas surrounding 
Ridgeland the increased fire protection and emergency services that are available through a fire 
and emergency services contract with the Town of Ridgeland, and provide further for mutual aid 
between the Town of Ridgeland and Ridgeland Rural Fire District; and 

WHEREAS, both Jasper County and the Town of Ridgeland agree that it is in the best interests 
of their citizens to secure, by agreement, both a Fire and Emergency Services Agreement and 
Mutual Aid Agreement to provide supplemental fire and emergency services to each other; and 

WHEREAS, both Jasper County and the Town of Ridgeland have consulted with each other in 
order to assess the long-term needs of the representative jurisdictions and the manpower and 
financial resources needed to provide the appropriate level of service; and 

WHEREAS, Section 5-7-60 of the Code of Laws of South Carolina authorizes the municipality 
to perform many of its functions and provide many of its services in areas outside the corporate 
limits by contract and to make charges thereof; and 

WHEREAS, Section 4-21-10 of the Code of laws of South Carolina provides authority for a 
governing body of a county to provide fire protection and ambulance services by contract with 
municipalities and for the charging of a service fee for services; and 

WHEREAS, Section 6-1-330 of the Code of Laws of South Carolina provides authority for a 
local governing body to adopt service or user fees; and 

THEREFORE, BE IT AGREED, in consideration of the foregoing premises and the 
considerations set forth below, that the Town of Ridgeland, South Carolina shall provide fire 
protection and emergency services to a portion of the Ridgeland Rural Fire District, as hereinafter 
described in Exhibit "A", and that Jasper County and the Town of Ridgeland will provide mutual 
aid to each other on the following terms and conditions. 

Section 1: The Town of Ridgeland agrees to provide all fire protection services in the 
Ridgeland Rural Fire District, being provided on the date of execution of this Agreement upon 
the following terms and conditions recognizing that Jasper County Fire Rescue has been charged 
with provision of fire protection for the Jasper County Claude Dean Airport (hereinafter, Airport). 
This provision is in accordance with compliance assurances included with a grant received from 
the Federal Aviation Administration for Airport improvements.  

Section 2. The Town of Ridgeland agrees that its Fire Department will provide Mutual Aid 
to the County for incidents located at the Airport and Jasper County agrees that it will provide 
Mutual Aid to the Town upon request.  
 



 
 Section 3. The term of this agreement shall end on June 30, 2027, at 23:59:59 hours. 

Section 4. The Agreement shall take effect after its adoption by both Councils. 

Section 5. The following terms and conditions are accepted by both Councils. 

FIRE PROTECTION 

a. When a call for fire services is received by the Jasper County dispatcher for a property or 
incident located within the Ridgeland Rural Fire District as depicted and/or described on the 
attached map and/or description (Exhibit A), the dispatcher will send a call tone out for the 
Town of Ridgeland Fire Department.  

b. The Town of Ridgeland shall respond to the call for fire services by either utilizing 
the Jasper County Tanker leased and assigned to the Town or by using its own engines and 
equipment or both. It is further agreed that all existing equipment and supplies allocated to the 
Town of Ridgeland station within the Town of Ridgeland may also be used for the provision 
of fire service protection services within the Town corporate limits. 

c. In order to provide proper inspection and maintenance on the Jasper County Tanker, the 
Town of Ridgeland agrees to provide ordinary maintenance and repairs (fuel, oil, tillers, etc.) 
for the tanker and Jasper County and the Town of Ridgeland will equally divide 
responsibility for any major repairs, (engine, pump, etc.). 

d. Jasper County will lease the Tanker to the Town of Ridgeland for the sum of One ($1.00) 
Dollar per year, and such lease shall be disclosed to the appropriate insurance carriers. 

e. The Town of Ridgeland will garage keep the Tanker. 

f. The 1% collected pursuant to the South Carolina Fireman’s Insurance and Inspection 
Fund within the Ridgeland Rural Fire District shall be allocated to the Town of Ridgeland in 
accordance with Mathias v. Hair, et al., 2004 WL 726821, Opinion No 3547 (S.C. Ct. App.). 

g. All Fire Marshal duties in the Ridgeland Rural Fire District will be the responsibility of 
the Town of Ridgeland Fire Department. In an effort to keep Jasper County Fire Rescue in the 
knowing of any new construction in the Ridgeland Rural Fire District, any time there are new 
building(s) constructed in the contracted district a list of these buildings and copies of pre-fire 
plans will be forwarded to Jasper County Fire Rescue. 

MUTUAL AID 

a. When a call for Fire Services is received by the Jasper County dispatcher for a property 
or incident located within the Town of Ridgeland or the Ridgeland Rural Fire District as depicted 
on the attached map and/or description (Exhibit A), the dispatcher will initially send a call tone 
for the Town of Ridgeland Fire Department and any appropriate Jasper County Fire Rescue 
resources as requested by the Town. Initial responsibility shall be the obligation of the Town of 
Ridgeland Fire Department. 

 



b. In the event the Town of Ridgeland Fire Department has not been able to acknowledge it 
is responding to the call within two minutes, the dispatcher will send out a second tone out for 
the Town of Ridgeland Fire Department. 

c. In the event the Town of Ridgeland Fire Department is engaged in responding to a call 
within the Town of Ridgeland or the Ridgeland Rural Fire District, or there is imminent threat to 
life or property requiring resources beyond those available to the Town of Ridgeland through its 
own resources, The Town of Ridgeland Fire Chief or other appropriate official in charge of 
providing fire protection for the Town may contact the Jasper County Dispatcher and request 
mutual aid from specified departments per mutual aid agreements that have already been 
established or the Jasper County Fire & Rescue. 

d. When a call for fire service is received by the Jasper County dispatcher for a property or 
incident located within a portion of the Ridgeland Rural Fire District not covered by this 
agreement, the dispatcher will initially send a call tone for the Jasper County Fire & Rescue. 
Initial response responsibility shall be the obligation of the Jasper County Fire & Rescue. 

e. In the event Jasper County Fire & Rescue has not been able to acknowledge it is 
responding to the call within two minutes, or if there is an imminent threat to life or property 
requiring additional response, The Jasper County Fire Chief or their designee may contact the 
Jasper County Dispatcher and request mutual aid from the Town of Ridgeland Fire Department. 
 

EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES 

a. When a call for emergency medical services is received by the Jasper County dispatcher 
for an incident located in the Ridgeland Rural Fire District as shown on the attached Exhibit A, 
the dispatcher will initially send a call tone out for the Jasper County Fire and Rescue Department, 
unless the Emergency Services assigned for the Department are unavailable due to a previous 
response call, or there is a life- threatening incident requiring immediate response by the Town 
personnel, in which case the initial call tone out may be made to the Town of Ridgeland Fire and 
Rescue Department. Except as noted above, the initial response responsibility shall be the 
obligation of Jasper County Fire and Rescue. 

b. In the event Jasper County cannot provide sufficient personnel and vehicles to the incident 
scene with its resources, the Town of Ridgeland shall provide back-up response equipment and 
personnel upon request. 

c. When a call for emergency medical services is received by the Jasper County dispatcher for 
an incident located in the Town of Ridgeland, the dispatcher will initially send a call tone out for 
both the Town of Ridgeland Fire and Rescue Department and to the Jasper County Fire and 
Rescue Department. 

d. In the event the Town of Ridgeland cannot provide sufficient personnel and vehicles to the 



incident scene with its resources, Jasper County shall provide back-up response equipment and 
personnel upon request. 

COMPENSATION AND INSURANCE  

a. The Town of Ridgeland shall provide its customary pay to its volunteers, as well as 
remaining responsible for all insurance coverage, tort, vehicle, General liability. Worker's 
Compensation and any other required coverage for its personnel and equipment. 

b. The Town of Ridgeland shall be responsible for compensating the Town of Ridgeland 
personnel, as well as responsibility for all insurance coverage, medical malpractice, tort, vehicle, 
general liability, Worker's Compensation, and any other required coverage for its personnel and 
equipment, as well as vehicle and general liability insurance coverage for the Jasper County 
Tanker. 

c. In order to compensate the Town of Ridgeland for providing the services outlined above 
within the Ridgeland Rural Fire District, Jasper County shall pay the amounts set forth below 
for each year, annualized and prorated, payable as follows: 

A. $275,632.00 for fiscal year July 1, 2024 through June 30, 2025 

B. $283,900.00 for fiscal year July 1, 2025 through June 30, 2026 

C. $ 292,417.00 for fiscal year July 1, 2026 through June 30, 2027  

I. 50% of the total budget shall be paid on July 1 of each year. 
II. 25% of the total budget shall be advanced on October 1 of each year. 
III. 25% of the total budget shall be advanced on February of each year. 

 

d. The Town shall generate an invoice remitted to the County’s Chief Financial Officer for 
each segment of the contract. 

  

e. The Town of Ridgeland acknowledges these are public funds, and therefore shall maintain 
books and records of all amounts expended under this Agreement in such a manner as may be 
directed by the Town's auditors. Audits conducted by the Town's auditor on this account or 
accounts shall be provided to Jasper County. 

TERMINATION DATE 

This Agreement shall terminate on June 30, 2027, which is the end of the fiscal year for both 
governments. It is anticipated that Jasper County shall resume provision of primary coverage 
for the Ridgeland Rural Fire District commencing July 1, 2027. 

 

 

file://rell


MISCELLANEOUS 
 

If a court shall finally determine that any aspect of this Agreement is void or 
unenforceable, it is the intention of the parties that it shall not thereby terminate, but shall be 
deemed amended to the extent required to make it valid and enforceable, and such provision 
or provisions shall be deemed severed from this Agreement and all other provisions shall remain 
in full force and effect. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Town of Ridgeland and Jasper County, acting under the 
authority of their respective governing bodies, having caused this Agreement to be duly executed 
in duplicate, either of which is to be considered an original, thereby binding the Town and the 
County for the faithful and full performance of the terms and conditions of this Agreement, as 
of the date first written above. 

 

 

 

TOWN OF RIDGELAND    JASPER COUNTY 

 
______________________________  _______________________________ 
By: Dennis Averkin    By: Andrew Fulghum 
Town Administrator    County Administrator 

 

 

 

 
 
















	10.16.2023 Agenda - Final and Approved
	Agenda Item # 7 Sheet
	Item # 7 - Proclamation Beatrice Graham
	Agenda Item # 8 Sheet
	Item # 8 - MB Kahn - Sept 2023 Program Status Report received from Rose Dobson-Elliott
	Agenda Item # 9 Sheet
	Item # 9 - Ord # O-2023-18 -Ordinance for CSP clarifying the term Developer for Oct 16 2023 by DT_ 3rd read
	Agenda Item # 10 Sheet
	Item # 10 - Part 1 - Treasurer Contract Agreements FY23-24
	Item # 10 - Part 2 - Updated Jasper County Treasury Assessment 3-30-23
	Item # 10 - Part 3 - contract with three+one
	Item # 10 - Part 4 - Addendum #1 Jasper County Treasury Assessment 9-18-23
	Item # 10 - Part 5 - Addendum #2 Jasper County Treasury Assessment 9-18-23
	Agenda Item # 11 Sheet
	Item # 11 - Part 1 - Staff Report - Planning Commission Applications
	Item # 11 - Part 2 - Planning Commission Applications
	Agenda Item # 12 Sheet
	Agenda Item # 13 Sheet
	Item # 13 - Administrator's Report 10.16.23
	Agenda Item # 14-19 Sheet
	Item # 14 - Res# R-2023-19 - Surplus nonusable SCBA liquidation resolution with (DLT) edits
	Item # 15 - Res# R-2023-20 - RESOLUTION LEKTRO AIRCRAFT TUG PROCUREMENT SOLE SOURCE 101623 (002)
	Item # 16 - Part 1 - Work Authorization Form for the Coosawhatchie Fire Station - M. B. Kahn Contract
	Item # 16 - Part 2 - Coosawhatchie Fire Station - M. B. Kahn Contract
	Item # 17 - Bid Presentation Package--Robertville Community Center
	Item # 18  - Res# R-2023-21 - Ridgeland Resolution approving IGA for Fire and Emergency Services for 2024 through June 2027 Oct 11 with IGA attached
	Item # 19 - 06.05.2023 Minutes
	Agenda Item # 20 Sheet

